

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

SUPPLY, INSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & SUPPORT FOR SOFTWARE SOLUTION FOR GOODS & SERVICES TAX (GST)

ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT
HEAD OFFICE
NAINITAL

The Nainital Bank Limited 20th April, 2021 RFP Reference No.- NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/009

Table of Contents

1	I. Section I – Invitation to Bid	4
1.1.	`Document Control Sheet	5
2	2. DISCLAIMER	7
3	3. Section II: Instructions for Bid Submission	8
3.1.	Executive summary of the project	8
3.2.	Preparation of Bids	9
3.3.	Submission of Bids	9
3.4.	Assistance to Bidders	10
3.5.	Cost to Bid	10
3.6.	Micro and Small Enterprise (MSE)	10
3.7.	Contents of the RFP Document	11
3.8.	Clarification on RFP Document	11
3.9.	Amendment of RFP Document	12
3.10.	Language of Bids	12
3.11.	Documents Comprising the Bids	12
3.12.	Bid Prices	13
3.13.	Firm Prices	14
3.14.	Bidder Qualification	14
3.15.	Earnest Money Deposit (EMD)	15
3.16.	Security Deposit	15
3.17.	Period of Validity of Bids	16
3.18.	Format and Signing of Bid	16
3.19.	Revelation of Prices	16
3.20.	Terms and Conditions of Bidders	16
3.21.	Consortium	17
3.22.	Last Date for Receipt of Bids	17
3.23.	Late Bids	17
3.24.	Modification and Withdrawal of Bids	17
3.25.	Bidder's Address for Correspondence	17
3.26.	Contacting the Bank	17
3.27.	Opening of Bids by Bank	18
3.28.	Evaluation of Bids	18
3.29.	Preliminary Examination	18
3.30.	Clarification	18
3.31.	Evaluation of Eligibility Criteria	19
3.32.	Evaluation of Technical Bids	21

3.33.	Evaluation of Commercial Bids	25
3.34.	Final Bid Evaluation (Techno commercial bid):	26
3.35.	Bank's Right to Vary Scope of Contract at the time of Award	27
3.36.	Bank's Right to Accept Any Bid and to Reject Any or All Bids	27
3.37.	Notification of Award	27
3.38.	Award of Contract	28
3.39.	Placing of Purchase Orders	29
3.40.	Bank Guarantee for Contract Performance	29
3.41.	Confidentiality of the Document	30
3.42.	Tender Related Condition	30
3.43.	Rejection Criteria	30
3.43.1	General Rejection Criteria	31
3.43.2	Technical Rejection Criteria	31
3.43.3	Commercial Rejection Criteria	31
4.	Section III - General Conditions of Contract	. 32
4.1.	Term and Extension of the Contract	33
4.2.	Prices 34	
4.3.	Payment Schedule	35
4.4.	Service Level Agreement & Targets	36
5.	Section IV - Bid Submission Format	. 37
5.1.	Bidder Profile	37
5.2.	Manufacturer Authorization Format	
5.3.	Declaration for Non-Blacklisting	40
5.4.	Undertaking of Information Security	41
5.5.	Undertaking by the bidder (To be included in Technical & Commercial Bid Envelope)	42
5.6.	Undertaking for Price Validity & Acceptance of all terms & conditions of RFP	43
5.7.	Undertaking for No Deviation	
6)	Section V: Scope of Work	. 45
6.1	Detailed Scope of Work:	45
6.2	Timeline For Go-Live	55
6.3	Software Functionality	55
6.4	Hardware Specifications	64
_	Continue VII - Financial Did Format	CE

1. Section I – Invitation to Bid

RFP No. NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/009

The Nainital Bank Ltd.

Head Office, Seven Oaks Building, Mallital, Nainital, Uttarakhand - 263001

Dated: 20.04.2021

The Nainital Bank Ltd. invites bids (Technical & Financial) from eligible bidders which are valid for a period of 180 days from the last date of submission of bid date for "SUPPLY, INSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & SUPPORT FOR SOFTWARE SOLUTION FOR GOODS & SERVICES TAX (GST)".

Scope of Work	SUPPLY, INSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & SUPPORT FOR SOFTWARE SOLUTION FOR GOODS & SERVICES TAX (GST)	
Application Money	Rs. 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Only)	Application money has to be deposited as DD/PO* at the time of submission of Bid.
EMD (Earnest Money Deposit) to be submitted	Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakhs Only)	Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) submitted in the form of DD/PO* or Bank Guarantee which should be valid for a period of 6 months from last date for bid submission date. EMD to be deposited along with the bid.
Last date and time of sub	omission of Bids	10/05/2021 (1600 Hrs)
Date and time of opening of Eligibility cum Technical Bids (envelope 1 and envelope 2)		Date and time of opening of envelope 1 & 2 will be shared later to the bidders (through the authorized e-mail ID shared by the bidders in Bidder Profile.)

Interested parties may view and download the RFP Document containing the detailed terms & conditions, from the website https://www.nainitalbank.co.in/english/tender.aspx

RFP Coordinator – Rajendra Singh Contact No – 05942-236335, 8375970419,9818842307 e-mail – accounts@nainitalbank.co.in

^{*}DD/PO and Bank Guarantee should be made in favour of The Nainital Bank Ltd. and DD/PO be made Payable at Delhi.

1.1. `Document Control Sheet

Tender Reference No.	NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/008
Name of Organization	THE NAINITAL BANK LIMITED
Tender Type (Open/Limited/EOI/Auction/Single)	OPEN
Tender Category (Services/Goods/works)	Services / Goods
Type/Form of Contract (Work/Supply/Auction/Service/Buy/ Empanelment/Sell)	Supply/Service/Buy
Technical Evaluation (Yes/No)	Yes
Is Multi Currency Allowed	No (Only INR)
Payment Mode (Online/Offline)	Offline
RFP Issuance Date	20/04/2021
RFP Coordinator	RFP Coordinator – Rajendra Singh
	Contact No – 05942-236335, 8375970419, 9818842307
Last data of magaining qualitan as a second for	e-mail – accounts@nainitalbank.co.in
Last date of receiving written request for clarifications before the pre-bid meeting	16:00 hrs on 23/04/2021 -mail to accounts@nainitalbank.co.in
Pre-bid meeting	Due to on-going Covid-19 pandemic, pre
Last date of submission of RFP response	bid meeting will be held through online mode on 26/04/2021 between 1:00PM and 3:00PM. • Bidder to submit the names of -2-authorized officials/persons (Maximum) along with their contact numbers, designations and e-mail IDs on accounts@nainitalbank.co.in by 23/04/2021 along with clarification sought (if any) in a prescribed format mentioned at point 3.8. • Invitation link of the meeting will be sent by the Bank to email IDs (max 2) of authorized officials/persons of the bidder to join the Online Pre-bid Meeting as per the schedule mentioned above. • In order to join the On-line Pre-bid meeting, the Bidder's representatives will have to click the link provided through E-mail by the Bank. 1600 Hrs. on 10/05/2021 at
Last date of submission of RFP response (Closing date) And address for submission of Bid	The Nainital Bank Ltd., 33, Second Floor, Punchkuian Road Above Lahore Furniture Mart New Delhi - 110001
Mode of Submission of Bid	The bidder shall deposit the Bid envelope in person in the tender box kept for this purpose at the above address on or before 16:00 hrs, on bid submission date mentioned herein this RFP

	document.	
Date and time of opening of Eligibility	Date and time of opening of envelope 1 & 2 will	
cum Technical Bids (envelope 1 and envelope 2)	be shared later on to the bidders (through the authorized e-mail ID shared by the bidders.)	
Date of Technical Presentation Date of technical presentation will be shall be shal		
	later on to the eligible bidders through	
	authorized e-mail ID shared by the bidders.	
Contract Type (Empanelment/Tender)	Tender	
Multiple Technical Annexure(s)	Yes	
Quoting for all Technical Annexures is	Yes	
compulsory		
Application Money	Rs.10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Only)*	
Bid Security (Earnest Money Deposit)	Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only)*	
Bid Validity days	180 days from the last date for submission of bid	
Location for Submission of Bid	The Nainital Bank Ltd.,	
	33, Second Floor, Punchkuian Road	
	Above Lahore Furniture Mart	
	New Delhi - 110001	
Validity of Contract	Five years from the Go-Live date of proposed	
	solution, , extendable for further Two years	
	solely at option of the Bank	
Address for Communication	Mr. Rahul Pradhan	
	Associate Vice President – Accounts &	
	Operations Department	
	The Nainital Bank Ltd.	
	Head Office, Seven Oaks Building	
	Mallital, Nainital, Uttarakhand - 263001	

^{*} MSEs (Micro and Small Enterprise (MSE) are exempted from paying the application money and Bid security amount for which the concerned enterprise needs to provide necessary documentary evidence. For MSEs Government of India provisions shall be considered while evaluating the tender. (Please refer Pt. 3.6 of this RFP document for detailing the MSE clause)

2. DISCLAIMER

Subject to any law to the contrary and to the maximum extent permitted by law, the Bank and its Directors, Officers, employees, contractors, representatives, agents and advisors disclaim all liability from any loss, claim, expenses (including, without limitation, any legal fees, costs, charges, demands, actions, liabilities, expenses or disbursement incurred therein or incidental thereto) or damage, (whether foreseeable or not) ("losses") suffered by any person acting on or refraining from acting because of any presumption or information(whether oral or written and whether expressed or implied), including forecasts, statements, estimate or projections contained in this RFP document or conduct ancillary to it whether or not the losses rise in connection with any ignorance, negligence, inattention, casualness, disregard, omission, default, lack of care, immature information, falsification or misrepresentation on the part of the Bank or any of its Directors, officers, employees, contractors, representatives, agents, or advisors.

3. Section II: Instructions for Bid Submission

3.1. Executive summary of the project

The Nainital Bank Limited was established in the year 1922 with the objective to cater banking needs of the people of the region. Bank of Baroda, a premier nationalized bank, is managing the affairs of The Nainital Bank Limited since 1973. The Bank is having 160 branches as of 31/03/2021 in five states i.e. Uttarakhand, Uttar Pradesh, Delhi, Haryana and Rajasthan. Bank's Head Office is at Nainital, Uttarakhand and -3- Regional Offices are functioning at Delhi, Dehradun and Haldwani. The Bank is running with a vision which states: "To emerge as a customer centric National Bank & become the most preferred bank for its product, services, technology, efficiency & financials."

Scope of RFP in brief is mentioned below:

The objective of this RFP envisages an end-to-end comprehensive solution for GST which includes procurement of perpetual license & supply of software, installation, design, sizing, training, customization, configuration, implementation, maintenance and support of the software and other components required, along with, parameterization, historical data management, verifying data quality, migrating data, user acceptance testing, documentation, training, knowledge transfer and support (hereinafter referred to as "solution")

The broad scope of work for the GST solution is given in the 'Scope of work' section wherein the selected bidder has to provide the necessary system to enable implementation of GST Solution, including all additional middleware as required by the offered solution, application software and all related components, complete interface with the Finacle 10.X CBS solution and other applications implementation and ongoing support services. This is an end to end project and all the items required for

making the application operational should be considered by the bidder, even if the same is not explicitly mentioned in this RFP document.

3.2. Preparation of Bids

Bidder should consider all corrigendum/s, (if any), published on the Bank's website related to the RFP Document before submitting their bids.

Please go through the tender advertisement and the RFP Document carefully to understand the documents required to be submitted as part of the bid. Please note the number of envelope in which the bid documents have to be submitted, the number of documents - including the names and content of each of the document that need to be submitted. Any deviations from these may lead to rejection of the bid.

3.3. Submission of Bids

The bidder shall seal the original DD/PO or Bank Guarantee as EMD and Application fees in form of DD/PO in an envelope which be marked as Envelope No. 1 along with other Pre-qualification documents. The Bidder shall mark its company/firm/LLP name and tender reference number on the back of the Bank Demand Draft before sealing the same. The address of The Nainital Bank Ltd., name and address of the bidder and the Tender Reference Number shall be marked on the envelope. The envelope shall also be marked with a Sentence "NOT TO BE OPENED BEFORE the Date and Time of Bid Opening". If the envelope is not marked as specified above, THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. will not assume any responsibility for its misplacement, pre-mature opening etc.

The bidder shall deposit the envelope in person in the tender box kept for this purpose at The Nainital Bank Ltd., 33, Second Floor, Punchkuian Road Above Lahore Furniture Mart New Delhi - 110001on or before 16:00 hrs, on bid submission date mentioned herein this RFP document.

One paper copy and one electronic copy (Power Point or Microsoft Word and Excel contained in storage media) of all documents submitted under Technical Bid (Envelope 2) submissions must be supplied to Bank at The Nainital Bank Ltd. IT Department, Head Office, Seven Oaks Building, Mallital Nainital – 263001 and addressed to "SUPPLY, INSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & SUPPORT FOR GST SOLUTION"

Bidders are requested to note that they should necessarily submit their commercial bids

in the format provided and no other format is acceptable. If the Bidder(s) adopts any other format, such bid(s) shall be rejected. If the Bidder(s) adopts any other format, such bid(s) shall be rejected.

3.4. Assistance to Bidders

Any queries relating to the RFP Document and the terms and conditions contained therein should be addressed to the RFP Coordinator indicated in this RFP.

3.5. Cost to Bid

The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its bid, including cost of presentation for the purposes of clarification of the bid or otherwise. The Bank, will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the Tendering process.

3.6. Micro and Small Enterprise (MSE)

As per recommendations of GOI, Bank has decided to waive off EMD and tender cost (application money) for Micro and Small Enterprise MSE.

- 1. MSEs are exempted from paying the application money and Bid security amount for which the concerned enterprise needs to provide necessary documentary evidence issued by NSIC. For MSEs Government of India provisions shall be considered while evaluating the tender. Bids received without EMD and tender cost (application money) from bidders not having valid NSIC registered documents for exemption will not be considered.
- 2. To qualify for EMD & Tender Fee / Cost (application fee) exemption, firms should necessarily enclose a valid copy of registration certificate which is valid on last date of submission of the tender documents. MSE firms who are in the process of obtaining registration will not be considered for EMD & Tender Fee / Cost exemption (application fee).
- 3. MSE bidder has to submit a self-declaration accepting that if they are awarded the contract and they fail to sign the contract or to submit a Performance Bank Guarantee before the deadline defined by the Bank, they will be suspended for a period of three years from being eligible to submit bids for contracts with the Bank.
- 4. Bids received without EMD for bidders not having valid registration documents for exemption will not be considered. However, Performance Bank Guarantee has

to be submitted by the bidder under any circumstance.

3.7. Contents of the RFP Document

The RFP Document is divided into following sections:

- 1. Section I Invitation for Bids
- 2. Section II Instructions for Bid submission
- 3. Section III General Conditions of the Contract and Service Level Agreement
- 4. Section IV Bid Submission Format
- 5. Section V Scope of Work
- 6. Section VI Financial bid format

The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms & conditions, and scope of work in the RFP Document and furnish all information as stipulated therein.

3.8. Clarification on RFP Document

A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification on the RFP Document may submit his queries, through email, at the Bank's e-mail address i.e. <u>accounts@nainitalbank.co.in</u> and as per schedule indicated under **point no. 1.1 of Section I – Invitation for Bids.** The queries must be submitted in the following format (in Excel file,*.xls) shall only be considered for clarification:

Sr. No	Page No./ Section No.	Clause No.	Reference/ Subject	Clarification Sought
		••		

The Bank will only respond to queries submitted in the above excel format.

All queries on the RFP Document should be received on or before as prescribed by the Bank in Section I of this RFP Document. Bank's response (including the query but without identifying the source of inquiry) would be provided to the bidders present during the Pre-bid meeting and corrigendum (if any) would be uploaded on bank's website https://www.nainitalbank.co.in/english/tender.aspx. Bidders are responsible for duly checking the above website for any corrigendum and Bank's response.

Note: Inputs/suggestions/queries submitted by bidders as part of the pre-bid queries and otherwise will be given due consideration by the Bank, however THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. is not mandated to accept any submission made by the bidder and nor the

bidder will be given any written response to their submissions. If an input is considered valid by the bank the same will be accepted and incorporated as part of the corrigendum and shall be published on Bank's website.

3.9. Amendment of RFP Document

At any time prior to the last date for receipt of bids, the Bank, may, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a prospective Bidder, modify the RFP Document by an amendment.

Any Amendments will be notified in writing on bank's website www.nainitalbank.co.in under Tender Option and will be binding on all bidders.

In order to provide prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in preparing their bids, the Bank may, at its discretion, extend the last date for the receipt of Bids. Any or all corrigendum/amendments notified by the Bank shall be treated integral part of this RFP

3.10. Language of Bids

The Bids prepared by the Bidder and all correspondence and documents relating to the bids exchanged by the Bidder and the Bank, shall be written in **English language.**

3.11. Documents Comprising the Bids

The bid prepared by the Bidder shall comprise of the following components:

1. Envelope 1 - Pre Qualification envelope

The Pre-qualification envelope, besides the other requirements of the Tender, shall comprise of the following: (The envelope should be marked as "Pre-Qualification)"

- Bid Submission Cover Letter
- Bidder's Profile as per pt. 5.1
- Undertaking for No Deviation as per pt. 5.7
- Application Money in form of DD in original
- Original EMD (as mentioned in this RFP) the original Bank Guarantee for EMD must be submitted in a sealed envelope mentioning "EMD-NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/009" by Bid submission end date as mentioned in Section 1 Invitation of Bids.
- Compliance List of Documents
- Response to Eligibility criteria: Eligibility Criteria which should contain all

the supporting documents asked for eligibility criteria.

• Power of Attorney executed by the Bidder in favour of the Principal Officer or the duly Authorized Representative, certifying him as an authorized signatory for the purpose of this Tender.

2. Envelope 2 - Technical Bid envelope

The Technical Bid, besides the other requirements of the Tender, shall comprise of the following:(The envelope should be marked as "Technical bid")

- Technical Bid Letter
- Methodology and Project Plan
- Bidder Solution
- Proposed hardware specification
- Supporting documents as required in technical score sheet
- Undertaking of Information Security as per pt. 5.4
- Undertaking by the bidder as per pt. 5.5
- All documents including Power point presentation, solution document, technical compliance in a storage media. Technical compliance and bill of material has to be submitted in excel format.

All documents should be signed and stamped by the authorized person.

3. Envelope 3 - Commercial Bid envelope

The Commercial Bid, besides the other requirements of the Tender, shall comprise of the following:(The envelope should be marked as "Commercial bid")

- Commercial Bid Letter
- Commercial Bid as per format given in this RFP
- Undertaking for Price Validity & Acceptance of all terms and conditions of RFP as per pt. 5.6

A standard format for submission of commercial bids has been provided with the tender to be filled by all the bidders. Bidders are requested to note that they should necessarily submit their commercial bids in the format provided and submission in any other format will lead to rejection of the bid

3.12. Bid Prices

The Bidder shall indicate in the proforma prescribed total Bid Prices of the solution, it proposes to provide under the Contract. Prices should be shown separately for each item as detailed in RFP Documents.

In the absence of above information as requested, a bid may be considered incomplete and be summarily rejected.

The Bidder shall prepare the bid based on details provided in the RFP Documents. It must be clearly understood that the Scope of Work is intended to give the Bidder an idea about the order and magnitude of the work / solution required by the Bank and is not in any way exhaustive and guaranteed by the Bank. The Bidder shall carry out all the tasks in accordance with the requirement of the RFP Documents and it shall be the responsibility of the Bidder to fully meet all the requirements of the RFP Documents.

3.13. Firm Prices

Prices quoted in the bid must be firm and final and shall not be subject to any upward modifications, on any account whatsoever. However, the Bank reserves the right to negotiate the prices quoted in the bid to effect downward modification. The Bid Prices shall be indicated in Indian Rupees (INR) only.

The Commercial bid should clearly indicate the price to be charged and Taxes will be applicable as per actuals. It is mandatory that such charges wherever applicable/payable should be indicated separately in **Section IV - Bid Submission Format**. However, should there be a change in the applicable taxes, the same may apply.

3.14. Bidder Qualification

The "Bidder" as used in the RFP Documents shall mean the one who has signed the Tender Form. The Bidder may be either the **Principal Officer** or his duly **Authorized Representative**, in either cases he/she shall submit a certificate of authority. All certificates and documents (including any clarifications sought and any subsequent correspondences) received hereby, shall, as far as possible, be furnished and signed by the representative and the principal.

It is further clarified that the individual signing the tender or other documents in connection with the tender must certify whether he/she signs as the Constituted attorney of the firm, or a company.

The authorization shall be indicated by written power-of-attorney accompanying the bid.

The power of attorney and any other document consisting of adequate proof of the ability of the signatory to bind the Bidder shall be annexed to the bid.

Any change in the Principal Officer shall be intimated to THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. in advance.

3.15. Earnest Money Deposit (EMD)

The Bidder shall furnish, as part of its bid, an Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) of the amount Rs 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) as a security.

The EMD is required to protect the Bank against the risk of Bidder's conduct which would warrant the security's forfeiture.

The EMD must be submitted, in form of DD/PO or Bank Guarantee valid for a period of -6- months from the last date of bid submission, of any Scheduled Commercial Bank favouring The Nainital Bank Ltd.

In case of bidders being an MSE under registration of any scheme of Ministry of MSE, they are exempted from the submission of EMD. A valid certificate in this regard issued by the NSIC has to be submitted along with the bid. (Please refer pt. no. 3.6 Micro and Small Enterprise clause for details)

Unsuccessful Bidder's EMD will be returned after award of contract to the successful Bidder. No interest will be paid by the Bank on the EMD.

The successful Bidder's EMD will be discharged upon the bidder executing the Contract, and furnishing the Bank Guarantee/security deposit. **No interest will be paid by the Bank on the EMD.**

The EMD may be forfeited:

- a. if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified in the RFP; or
- b. in the case of a successful Bidder, if the Bidder fails;
 - i. to sign the Contract in accordance; or
 - ii. to furnish Security Deposit/Bank Guarantee for contract performance

3.16. Security Deposit

• The successful bidder will be required to submit Security deposit in the form of Bank Guarantee, favoring The Nainital Bank Ltd. equal to the 10% of purchase order value.

- Validity: Valid for 60 months. The BG will be released after 60 months and/or extended period or execution of all pending Purchase Orders, whichever is later.
- In the event of termination, Bank may Invoke the Performance Bank Guarantee/Security Deposits, recover such other direct costs and other amounts towards direct damages from the Agency that may have resulted from such default and pursue such other rights and/or remedies that may be available to the Bank under law.

3.17. Period of Validity of Bids

Validity of bid will be 180 days from the last date of submission of bid. **Any bid of a shorter period may be rejected by the Bank as non-responsive.**

In exceptional circumstances, the Bank may request the Bidder(s) for an extension of the period of validity of bids upto 180 days more. The request and the responses thereto shall be made through e-mail. The validity of EMD may also be extended if required.

3.18. Format and Signing of Bid

The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink. **The original and all copies** shall be signed by the Bidder or a person or persons duly authorized to bind the Bidder to the Agreement/Contract. All pages of the bid, except for un-amended printed literature, shall be initialed and stamped by the person or persons signing the bid.

The response to the bid should be submitted along with legible, appropriately indexed, duly filled Information sheets and sufficient documentary evidence as per Checklist. Responses with illegible, incomplete information sheets or insufficient documentary evidence shall be rejected.

The Bidder shall duly sign and seal its bid with the exact name of the firm/company/LLP to whom the contract is to be issued.

3.19. Revelation of Prices

Prices in any form or by any reason before opening the Commercial Bid should not be revealed, failing which the offer shall be liable to be rejected.

3.20. Terms and Conditions of Bidders

Printed terms and conditions of the Bidders will not be considered as forming part of

their Bids. The terms and conditions mentioned the RFP will solely prevail.

3.21. Consortium

Consortium is not allowed.

3.22. Last Date for Receipt of Bids

Bids will be received by the Bank at the address specified under **Section I - Invitation for Bids** no later than the time and date specified in Section I -Invitation for Bids.

The Bank may, at its discretion, extend the last date for the receipt of bids by amending the RFP Document, in which case all rights and obligations of the Bank and Bidders previously subject to the last date will thereafter be subject to the last date as extended.

3.23. Late Bids

Any bid received by the Bank after the last date and time for receipt of bids prescribed by the Bank, pursuant to **Section I - Invitation for Bids, shall stand rejected.**

3.24. Modification and Withdrawal of Bids

No bid may be altered / modified subsequent to the closing time and date for receipt of bids. Unsolicited correspondences from Bidders will not be considered.

No bid may be withdrawn in the interval between the date for receipt of bids and the expiry of the bid validity period specified by the Bidder in the Bid. Withdrawal of a bid during this interval may result in the Bidder's forfeiture of its EMD.

3.25. Bidder's Address for Correspondence

The Bidder shall designate the official mailing address, place to which all correspondence shall be sent by the Bank.

3.26. Contacting the Bank

No Bidder shall contact the Bank on any matter relating to its bid, from the time of the bid opening up to the time of award of contract.

Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Bank's bid evaluation, bid comparison or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of the Bidder's bid.

3.27. Opening of Bids by Bank

The Bank will convene a bid opening session as per time schedule where one representative from the Bidder, who has successfully submitted the bid, may participate. Subsequent to this, Bank will further evaluate the Bid of only those agencies whose Application fees, EMD and eligibility criteria is found to be in order.

3.28. Evaluation of Bids

Bank will evaluate the bids. Decision of the Bank would be final and binding upon all the Bidders.

The purpose of these clauses is only to provide the Bidders an idea/overview of the evaluation process that the Bank may adopt. However, the Bank reserves the right to modify the evaluation process at any time during the Tender process, without assigning any reason, whatsoever, and without any requirement of intimating the Bidders of any such change.

Bidder must possess the requisite experience, strength and capabilities in providing the solution necessary to meet the Bank's requirements, as described in the RFP Document. Bidder must possess the technical know-how and the commercial wherewithal that would be required to successfully deliver the project as part of the solution and also to provide the maintenance and management support services sought by the Bank, for the entire period of the agreement/contract. The Bidder's bid must be completed in all respect and covering the entire scope of work as stipulated in the RFP Document.

3.29. Preliminary Examination

The Bank will examine the bids to determine whether they are complete, whether the bid format conforms to the Tender requirements, whether any computational errors have been made, whether required EMD have been furnished, whether the documents have been properly signed, and whether the bids are generally in order.

A bid determined as not substantially responsive will be rejected by the Bank and may not subsequently be made responsive by the Bidder by correction of the nonconformity.

3.30. Clarification

When deemed necessary, during the tendering process, the Bank may seek clarifications or ask the Bidders to make Technical presentations on any aspect from any or all the Bidders. However, that would not entitle the Bidder to change or cause any change in

the substance of the tender submitted or price quoted.

THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. reserves the right to seek fresh set of documents or seek clarifications on the already submitted documents.

3.31. Evaluation of Eligibility Criteria

In this part, the bid will be reviewed for determining the compliance of the general conditions of the contract and Eligibility Criteria as mentioned in the Tender. Any deviation for general conditions of the contract and eligibility criteria will lead to rejection of the bid.

Before opening and evaluation of their technical proposals, bidders are expected to meet all the general conditions of the contract and the eligibility criteria as mentioned below. Bidders failing to meet these criteria or not submitting requisite supporting documents / documentary evidence for supporting pre-qualification criteria are liable to be rejected summarily.

The bidder must possess the requisite experience, strength and capabilities in providing the solution necessary to meet the requirements, as described in the RFP Document. The bidder must also possess the technical know-how and the commercial wherewithal that would be required to successfully implement the solution sought by THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. for the entire period of the agreement/contract. The bids must be complete in all respects and should cover the entire scope of work as stipulated in the RFP Document. The invitation to the bids is open to all bidders who qualify the eligibility criteria as follows:

Sr. No	Eligibility Criteria	Supporting Documents
1.	Bidder should be a Government Organization / PSU / PSE / Partnership Firm under Partnership Act / LLP/ Private or public Limited Company in India at least for 5 years as	Certificate of Incorporation, PAN, TAN, GSTIN Certificate and any other tax related document if applicable, along with the copies of Memorandum of Association and Articles of
2.	on RFP issuance date The bidder shouldn't be blacklisted / barred / disqualified by any Statutory,	Association are required to be submitted along with the eligibility bid. Undertaking for non-blacklisted as given in pt. 5.3 of this document
	Regulatory or Government Authorities	

	or Public Sector Undertakings / Banks	
	(PSUs / PSBs) or Private Banks or	
	Financial Institutions in India.	
	The bidder should have ISO 27001,	Conv. of the valoriant contificator on
3.		Copy of the relevant certificates or
	9001 certification .	assessment certificate from auditing
		agency
4.	The bidder should be original	Manufacturer's Authorization Format
4.	equipment manufacturer of proposed	as per pt. 5.2 of this document
	GST Solution	
	The bidder should have a minimum	Audited financial statement of last
	turnover of INR 5 crores per annum for	three financial years
5.	the past 3 financial years (2017-18,	
	2018-19 and 2019-20). The bidder	
	should also have positive net worth	
	during the last 3 financial years.	
	The bidder to must have minimum 2	Documentary evidence with relevant
	end to end GST implementation	copies of satisfactory completion
6.	experience.	certificate along with Purchase Order
		including names of clients with Phone
		and Fax numbers, E-Mail IDs etc.
	The bidder should have in house team	Documentary evidence with relevant
	of sufficient number of resources	copies of satisfactory completion
	having minimum experience of 5 years	certificate along with Purchase Order
	in regulatory compliances solutions	including names of clients with Phone
	including minimum 2 years in GST	
	implementation related software	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
7.	development which includes software	
	developers/ coders / software	
	programmers/ Software Testers with	
	at least one qualified chartered	
	accountant with techno-functional	
	expertise in GST/ Tax related	
	software's	
	Bidder to provide an undertaking on	
8.	his letter head that all the functional	I ottom of confirmation from Didden
0.		Letter of confirmation from blader
1	and technical requirements highlighted	

as part of Scope of Work are covered in totality in the proposal submitted.

Note:

Bidder must comply with all the above-mentioned criteria as specified above. Non-compliance of any of the criteria can entail rejection of the offer.

Photocopies of relevant documents / certificates should be submitted as proof in support of the claims made for each of the above-mentioned criteria and as and when the Bank decides, originals / certified copies should be shown for verification purpose. The Bank reserves the right to verify / evaluate the claims made by the bidder independently.

Any deliberate misrepresentation will entail rejection of the offer ab-initio.

3.32. Evaluation of Technical Bids

Only those bidders who qualify all Pre-qualification / Eligibility Criteria requirements will be qualified for technical bid evaluation.

Technical presentation, will be a part of the process for evaluation of the bids.

The Bank reserves the right to reject a proposed solution including Product / Service if it is of an opinion that the offered product/service does not match the technical requirements / objectives specified in Technical Bid – Bank's Requirements.

The technical bid will first be reviewed for determining the Compliance of the Technical bids with the Tender terms and conditions, Minimum/Mandatory Technical requirements and the scope of work as defined in this tender.

Any bid found to be non-compliant to the mandatory Technical Requirements, Tender terms and conditions and the scope of work shall be rejected and will not be considered for further evaluation. Bids that are technically compliant would only be taken up for commercial evaluation.

If the bidder is found to be non-compliant to any of the mandatory technical specifications, then the respective bid would be summarily rejected without assigning any score.

Bidder is required to submit all the supporting documents as per the criteria mentioned in the Tender. Bank reserves right to summarily reject any bid which does not contain all the mandatory supporting document or may ask bidder to resubmit documents, the decision of Bank will be final and binding in this regards.

Bids that are technically qualified would only be taken up for commercial evaluation.

Bank reserves the right to disqualify any bidder based on any criteria considered relevant and its decision is binding. Representations, if any from disqualified bidders will not be entertained and will be summarily rejected. THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. will not respond to any query raised by bidders seeking reasons for rejection of the bid. Technical Bids will be evaluated for the following broad parameters and a score would be given to each bidder by the Bank based on the scoring criteria mentioned below-

Sl. No.	Parameter	Maximum
		Score
	Technical Evaluation	
A.	GST Product Functionality & Technical Requirements Evaluation	40
В	BIDDER's/OEM's Capability & Experience	30
С	Technical Presentation and Project Understanding	30
	Total	100

Scoring Matrix

A. GST Product Functionality & Technical Requirements Evaluation

bility of modules & interfaces - GST overall onal Requirements as detailed in the pt. 6.3 of this	40
nent) The total marks of the Techno Functional	
ıla: (Total Marks Obtained/Total Marks)*40	
	40
Ì	nent) The total marks of the Techno Functional rements will be scaled down to 40 marks) La: (Total Marks Obtained/Total Marks)*40

B. BIDDER's/OEM's Capability & Experience

Sl.No.	Scoring Parameter	Maximum	Documents to be submitted
		Score	
01	BIDDER/OEM experience in implementation of proposed GST Solution in PSU/Commercial Bank/Govt. Organization/Financial Services in India to be calculated as below: • Each Organization implementation will carry 2 marks		Copy of the Credential Letter or Copy of Purchase order from the client's executive and an Undertaking from the bidder on the bidder's letter head confirming the implementation along with the contact details of client's representative.
02	BIDDER/OEM should have at least 3 years of experience in providing proposed GST solution and service in PSU/Commercial Bank/ Govt. Organization. More than 5 years - 10 Marks > 3 and <=5 years -7 Marks 3 years - 5 Marks		Copy of the Credential Letter or Copy of Purchase order from the client's executive and an Undertaking from the bidder on the bidder's letter head confirming the implementation along with the contact details of client's representative.
	Total	20	1

C. Technical Presentation and Project Understanding

Sl.No.	Scoring Parameter	Maximum
		Score
01	Demonstration/Presentation on Proposed GST Application	40
	showcasing Solution Description, Functionality, Architecture &	
	Deployment model covering below major points:	
	 Clarification in understanding requirements 	
	• Detailed approach & methodology for providing the	
	proposed solution	
	Project Rollout Plan	
	• Coverage of entire details as per scope of work with value	
	add/proposition so as to ensure a complete effective and	

efficient solution	
Total	40

^{*}The following criteria must be adhered to by all bidders, in connection with the technical presentations during the bid selection process.

- At least one senior representative from bidder's organization should be present in the technical presentations
- Complete soft copies of the presentation materials should be shared with the Bank before the presentation.
- The Bank will expect and demand that the key personnel showcased by the vendor in the technical presentation should be the same person that actively drive the project execution.
- Bidders must strictly adhere to the time slots provided to them for the technical presentation, allowing ample time and scope for question-answers.
- Focus of the presentation should be on the specifics of the solution/approach being proposed for the Bank, not on general elucidation of technologies, tool stacks or concepts.
- Both technical and administrative aspects of the Assignment should be given suitable coverage.
- Focus should be on bringing out clearly what is specific / different / novel about the approach, not on beefing up the presentation with commonly known and/or spurious information
- All aspects of requirements in the RFP should be covered in the presentation e.g., proposed approach, capability to develop industry grade customized products, processes, frame works, organizational capabilities, team, governance, continuous development, transition approach etc.
- Any assumption, if taken in the response to RFP document should be clearly brought out in the technical presentation, along with the justification.
- Bank's evaluation and scoring on all aspects including technical presentation are final and non-negotiable

Note:

- 1. Group/Parent organization/company experience shall not be considered.
- 2. Direct orders from end customers shall be considered
- 3. The technical score will be allotted by Bank to each bidder against each section and will be considered final.

Technical Evaluation Criteria-

ST = Each Technical Proposal will be assigned a Score Technical (ST). The bidder with highest marks obtained (TM) in technical evaluation will be given a Score Technical (ST) of 100 points. The score technical (ST) of other proposals will be computed as follows:

ST = 100xTS/TM, where TS= marks obtained for Technical Proposal

Based on ST (Score Technical) the bid with highest ST score will be termed as T1. The rest of the bidders shall be ranked in descending order of ST Score value as T2, T3, T4 and so on.

Score will be considered up to two decimal places. Technical qualified bid will be considered once it scores minimum score technical (ST) of 70% and above, and rest will be technically rejected. Commercial will not be opened for technically dis-qualified bid.

3.33. Evaluation of Commercial Bids

Commercial bids submitted by only those bidders, who have qualified both prequalification and Technical evaluation, will be eligible for further evaluation.

The Commercial Bids of only those Bidders short listed from the Technical Bids by Bank will be opened in the presence of their representatives on a specified date and time to be intimated to the respective Bidders, and the same will be evaluated by Bank.

Bidders will be ranked as per the ascending order of value of their Commercial Bids as (Least Quoted) LQ1, LQ2, LQ3......and so on, LQ1 being the lowest Financial.

SF = Each commercial Proposal will be assigned a financial score (SF). The lowest GTV(Grand Total Value) (FM) will be given a financial score (SF) of 100 points. The financial scores of other proposals will be computed as follows:

SF = $100 \times FM/LQx(1,2,3...)$, where LQx = Amount of Financial Proposal (GTV)

Based on SF (Score Financial) the bid with highest SF score will be termed as L1. The rest of the bidders shall be ranked in descending order of SF Score value as L2, L3, L4 and so on.

Bidders quoting incredibly low or unrealistic high cost of items leading to unrealistic GTV with a view to subverting the tender process shall be rejected straight away by Bank and EMD of such vendor will be forfeited. Any bid found to be unsatisfactory in terms of any of the evaluated parameters as mentioned may be rejected and will not be considered for further evaluation.

3.34. Final Bid Evaluation (Techno commercial bid):

The evaluation of the tender is based on QCBS (Quality and Cost Based Selection).

The Combined Final Score contains 70% weightage for technical evaluation and 30% weightage for commercial evaluation. Therefore, combined and final evaluation will be done on the following basis:

Proposals will finally be ranked according to their combined Techno commercial score (TC) based on the below mentioned formula:

$$TC = ST*0.7 + SF*0.3$$

Bidders will be ranked basis their Final Techno Commercial Score (TC) i.e. TC1, TC2, TC3...and so on, TC1 being the highest Combined Final Score.

The shortlisted bidder will be declared after thorough evaluation of commercial bid by Bank. During the evaluation if the Bank finds that the detailed commercial bid is not in order or not complete etc. then Bank will treat his bid as non- viable and same will be rejected, and EMD will be forfeited. In such case the next ranked techno commercial bidder will be considered for further evaluation and so on till a bidder is selected.

If any bidder withdraws his bid, at any stage after the submission of the bid, till the final evaluation or declaration of the final selected bidder, it will be declared a defaulting bidder and EMD of such defaulting bidder will be forfeited and THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. reserves right to blacklist such bidders for next three years from participating in any THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. tender. In such situation the tendering process will be continued with the remaining bidders as per their ranking.

If the bidder backs out after being declared as selected bidder, it will be declared a defaulting bidder and EMD of such defaulting bidder will be forfeited and THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. reserves right to blacklist such organization for next three years from participating in any THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. Tender. In such case the detailed commercial bid of next ranked techno commercial bidder will be evaluated,

- a) If the detailed commercial bid is found in order, complete and its GTV is less than the withdrawing bidder, then this bidder will be declared as selected bidder and will provide services at its own quoted rates.
- b) In case the GTV of next ranked techno commercial bidder is higher than the withdrawing bidder, then it should match the detailed commercial bid offered

by withdrawing bidder in toto.

c) If next ranked techno commercial bidder also backs out, then the Bank will complete the tender process by following the aforesaid process again for other remaining techno-commercial ranked bidders.

Please note that if, after various rounds of evaluation to shortlist a Bidder in place of defaulting bidder, the Bank does not find any suitable bidder among remaining eligible bidders, then the Bank shall be at its liberty to reject or accept the bid of the next ranked techno commercial bidder.

3.35. Bank's Right to Vary Scope of Contract at the time of Award

The Bank may at any time, by a written order given to the Bidder, make changes to the scope of the Contract as specified.

If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for the Bidder's performance of any part of the work under the Contract, whether changed or not changed by the order, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Value or time schedule, or both, as decided by the bank and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Bidder for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within thirty (30) days from the date of the Bidder's receipt of the Bank's changed order.

3.36. Bank's Right to Accept Any Bid and to Reject Any or All Bids

The Bank reserves the right to accept any bid, and to annul the RFP/Tender process and reject all bids at any time prior to award of Contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder or Bidders or any obligation to inform the affected Bidder or Bidders of the grounds for the Bank's action.

3.37. Notification of Award

Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity (180 days from last date of bid submission), the Bank will notify the successful Bidder in writing that its bid has been accepted.

The notification of award will constitute the formation of the Agreement/Contract,

requiring the successful Bidder to furnish Bank Guarantee, favouring The Nainital Bank Ltd. of 10% of the Work/Purchase Order Value for ensuring contract performance. Thereafter the Bank will notify each unsuccessful Bidder and will return/release its EMD.

3.38. Award of Contract

There will be only one vendor.

At the same time as the Bank notifies the successful Bidder that its bid has been accepted, the Bank will send the Bidder the Proforma of Contract.

Within 15 days of receipt of the Proforma of Contract, the successful Bidder shall sign and date the Contract and return it to the Bank along with the Bank Guarantee, favouring The Nainital Bank Ltd. of 10% of the Work/Purchase Order Value for contract performance, as security deposit.

The contract period will be commencing from the date of signing of contract and will be valid for 5 yrs from the date of Go-Live of GST Solution. THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. reserves the right to extend the contract for further period of two years.

Keeping in view the project commitment, The Nainital Bank Ltd. reserves the right to ask the vendor to add new features/ process or modify the existing solution to take care the service delivery for matching the project requirements as and when required.

Vendor has to agree for honouring all tender conditions and adherence to all aspects of fair trade practices in executing the purchase orders placed by THE NAINITAL BANK LTD.

If the name of the system/service/process/solution is changed for describing substantially the same in a renamed form; then all techno-fiscal benefits agreed with respect to the original product, shall be passed on to THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. and the obligations with THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. taken by the Vendor with respect to the product with the old name shall be passed on along with the product so renamed.

The above Security Deposit will be in the form of Bank Guarantee (BG) of any Scheduled Commercial Bank. Security Deposit should be valid for the entire contract period of 60 months and renewed for extended period, if required, and thereafter on satisfactory performance and completion of contract, the Security Deposit shall be refunded to the vendor without any interest.

THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. may, at any time, terminate the contract by giving written notice of -30- days to the vendor without any compensation, if the vendor becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy which has accrued or will accrue thereafter to THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. If at any point during the contract, if the vendor fails to, deliver as per the tender terms and conditions or any other reason amounting to disruption in service, the Termination and Exit Management clause to be incorporated in contract, will be invoked.

In case of any takeover/merger/acquisition/transfer of ownership of bidder, the responsibility for smooth transition to the new entity lies with the bidder.

3.39. Placing of Purchase Orders

For procurement of GST solution, Purchase order will be placed on the vendor in hardcopy format.

Objection, if any, to the Purchase Order must be reported to the Bank by the vendor within five (5) working days counted from the date of receipt of Purchase Order for modifications, otherwise it is assumed that the vendor has accepted the Purchase Order in totality.

If the vendor is not able to supply/deploy/operationalize the ordered solution completely within the specified period, the penalty clause will be invoked.

The decision of THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. shall be final and binding on all the vendors to this document. THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. reserves the right to accept or reject an offer without assigning any reason whatsoever.

3.40. Bank Guarantee for Contract Performance

Within thirty days of the receipt of notification of award from the Bank, the successful Bidder shall furnish the performance security in the form of Bank guarantee, favouring BANK valid for a period of 60 months from the date of Signing of Contract in accordance with the Conditions of Agreement/Contract.

Failure of the successful Bidder to comply with the requirement mentioned in document shall constitute sufficient ground for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the EMD. In case of exigency, if the Bank gets the work done from elsewhere, the difference in the cost of getting the work done will be borne by the successful Bidder.

Performance bank Guarantee as per following schedule:

S.no.	Item	Value
1	Instrument	One single Deposit in the form of Bank Guarantee
2	Validity of Performance Bank Guarantee	Bank Guarantee to be submitted along with the duly stamped and signed contract and should be valid for a period of 60 months from the date of Go-Live of GST Solution. In case there is an extension of contract beyond 60 months, Bidder has to provide the BG for that extended period.
3	Amount	10% of Purchase Order value

3.41. Confidentiality of the Document

The RFP Document to be submitted by bidder is confidential and the Bidder shall ensure that anything contained in RFP Document shall not be disclosed in any manner, whatsoever.

3.42. Tender Related Condition

The Bidder should confirm unconditional acceptance of full responsibility of completion of job and for executing the 'Scope of Work' of this tender. This confirmation should be submitted as part of the Technical Bid. The Bidder shall also be the sole point of contact for all purposes of the Contract.

The Bidder should not be involved in any major litigation/arbitration that may have an impact of affecting or compromising the delivery of services as required under this contract. If at any stage of Tendering process or during the currency of the Contract, any suppression / falsification of such information is brought to the knowledge of the Bank, the Bank shall have the right to reject the bid or terminate the contract, as the case may be, without any compensation to the Bidder and claim damages before the court of law, resulting from such rejection/termination as the case may be.

3.43. Rejection Criteria

Besides other conditions and terms highlighted in the RFP Document, bids may be rejected under following circumstances:

3.43.1 General Rejection Criteria

- Bids submitted without or improper EMD and/or Application Money.
- Bids received through Telex / Telegraphic / Fax/E-Mail will not be considered for evaluation.
- Bids which do not confirm unconditional validity of the bid as prescribed in the Tender.
- If the information provided by the Bidder is found to be incorrect/ misleading at any stage / time during the Tendering Process.
- Any effort on the part of a Bidder to influence the Bank's bid evaluation, bid comparison or contract award decisions.
- Bids received by the Bank after the last date and schedule time for receipt of bids as prescribed by the Bank.
- Bids without letter of authorization and without any other document consisting
 of adequate proof of the ability of the signatory to bind the Bidder.

3.43.2 Technical Rejection Criteria

- Technical Bid containing commercial details.
- Revelation of Prices in any form or by any reason before opening the Commercial Bid.
- Failure to furnish all information required by the RFP Document or submission of a bid not substantially responsive to the RFP Document in every respect.
- Bidders not quoting for the complete scope of Work as indicated in the RFP Documents, addendum (if any) and any subsequent information given to the Bidder.
- Bidders not complying with the material technical requirement by way of functionality, specifications and General Terms and conditions as stated in the RFP Documents.
- The Bidder not confirming unconditional acceptance of full responsibility of providing services.
- If the bid does not confirm to the timelines indicated in the bid.
- Bidder not scoring minimum marks as mentioned in Tender

3.43.3 Commercial Rejection Criteria

- Incomplete Financial Bid
- Financial Bids that do not conform to the Tender's Financial bid format

- Total price quoted by the Bidder does not clarify regarding all statutory taxes and levies applicable.
- If there is an arithmetic discrepancy in the commercial bid calculations the Bank shall rectify the same at its discretion. If the Bidder does not accept the correction of the errors, its bid may be rejected.

4. Section III - General Conditions of Contract

Quality: Material/solution not confirming to given specifications will be rejected & it will be replaced by the vendor, free of cost. The material/solution must be as per the detailed specifications listed out in the RFP document and shall be as per standard engineering practice, relevant IS/ International code of practice, and shall be as per the Specifications as mentioned in RFP Document.

Statutory Laws: Vendor shall abide by all applicable rules and regulations regarding taxes, duties, labour etc., which are in force and from time to time enforced by the Government of India, also registration, labour laws, payments, ESIC, PF, insurance etc. Vendor shall coordinate for all these matters with concerned authorities directly.

Confidential Information: All information exchanged between the parties will be confidential. If the implementation project requires disclosure of, or receipt of, confidential information, such disclosure or receipt will be made with mutual agreement and may be with a separately executed MoU / Non-Disclosure agreement with Vendor by the Bank.

Extra Deviated Items: Any extra item like variation in quantity, deviated item should be executed only after getting the appropriate approvals with written confirmation, from the bank. At the time of submitting the invoice, all the documentary evidence of appropriate approvals for Extra / deviated Items / Variation in Quantities should be attached. Payments will not be made without scrutiny of aforesaid approvals.

Force Majeure: Bank shall not be responsible for delays or non-performance of any or all obligations, contained in this RFP or agreement thereafter, caused by war, revolution, insurrection, civil commotion, riots, mobilizations, strikes, blockade, acts of God, Plague, epidemics or pandemics, fire, flood, obstructions of navigation by ice of Port of dispatch, acts of government or public enemy or any other event beyond the control of the bank,

which directly, materially and adversely affect the performance of any or all such obligations. However, the bidder shall continue to perform its obligations as contained in this RFP and agreement thereafter.

Arbitration: The Bank and the Bidder shall make every effort to resolve amicably, by direct negotiation between the respective Designated Officials of the bank and the Bidder, any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the RFP and or contract thereafter.

If the designated official of the Bank and the Bidder are unable to resolve the dispute within -30- days from the commencement of such informal negotiations, they shall immediately escalate the dispute to their Senior Authorized Personal.

If within -30- days from the commencement of such negotiations between the Senior Authorized Personal designated by the Bidder and Bank, are unable to resolve their dispute amicably, in such case the dispute shall be settled finally by arbitration in, Nainital Uttarakhand, India under and in accordance with the provisions of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof. Both parties will appoint one arbitrator each. Both the appointed arbitrators together, shall nominate third arbitrator with mutual consensus.

Jurisdiction: The Jurisdiction for all disputes will be in the city of Nainital (Uttarakhand), India.

Safety: All the safety codes and the preventive measure for this type of work shall be strictly followed. In case of any mishap which causes injury, disability or death of any personnel and staff either on site or offsite during or after the duration of the project due to negligence of the staff of the vendor, shall be sole responsibility of vendor, this shall not be responsibility of Bank in any case. No Claims in this regards shall be paid by Bank.

4.1. Term and Extension of the Contract

The term of this Contract will commence from the date of signing of contract/agreement and will be valid for a period of five years from the date of Go-Live of GST Solution. The contract is extendable further for two years solely at option of the Bank.

The Bank shall reserve the sole right to grant any extension to the term above mentioned

and shall notify in writing to the Bidder, at least 6 months before the expiration of the Term hereof, whether it will grant the Bidder an extension of the Term. The decision to grant or refuse the extension shall be at the Bank's discretion.

During extended period of two years if deemed appropriate (THE NAINITAL BANK LTD. reserve right to extend the agreement with Bidder), the term and conditions for SLA, penalty and Prices for AMC & Manpower shall remain same as given for 5th Year.

Where the Bank is of the view that no further extension of the term be granted to the Bidder, the Bank shall notify the Bidder of its decision at least 6 (six) months prior to the expiry of the Term. Upon receipt of such notice, the Bidder shall continue to perform all its obligations hereunder, until such reasonable time beyond the Term of the Contract within which, the Bank shall either appoint an alternative service provider or create its own infrastructure to operate such Services as are provided under this Contract. In such scenario, the terms and conditions for SLA, penalty and Prices for services, AMC & Manpower shall remain same as given for 5th Year.

Warranty

- a) The warranty of 12 Months shall start from the date of UAT Sign-Off. Any defects / bugs noticed in the migrated/implemented applications shall be reworked and / or replaced by the Bidder / Vendor with defect-free components free-of-cost.
- b) Bidder / Vendor should provide software patches / upgrades towards complying with all the statutory and any other requirements from the Bank as specified from time to time during the Contract period, free of cost. The warranty period would start after live implementation* (*Live implementation means that after user acceptance and audit clearance the complete System is ported on the production environment (Go Live) and after issuance of Acceptance Certificate by the Bank).
- c) Bidder should setup one centralized L2 Support at Bank Site till the completion of warranty period as mentioned above. The Bank has a right to interview and reject resources deployed by the Bidder.

4.2. Prices

Prices quoted must be firm and shall not be subject to any upward revision on any account whatsoever throughout the period of contract. However, if there is any increase/decrease in taxes/ duties due to any reason whatsoever, after Notification of Award, the same shall be passed on to The Nainital Bank Ltd.

4.3. Payment Schedule

The payment schedule for various items as quoted in Section VI: Financial Bid Format will be as below: One Time Application Software/license cost of Goods & Service Tax (GST) solution, Third-Party Application Cost (if any), Implementation Cost & Integration Cost as quoted by bidder will be paid as under:

- i. One Time Application Software/license cost and third-party application cost (if any)
 - 50% on delivery of application software/license to Bank
 - 20% on first installation of proposed solution on Bank's infrastructure
 - 30% on successful GO-LIVE of the proposed solution

ii. Implementation & Integration cost

- 25% on contract signing and submission of Security Deposit
- 25% on first installation of proposed solution on Bank's infrastructure
- 10% on successful UAT
- 15% on successful integration of proposed solution with Finacle 10.x
- 25% on successful GO-LIVE of the proposed solution
- iii. **Annual AMC/ATS Charges** shall be payable annually in advance on successful GO-LIVE of the solution.
- iv. For any other cost as submitted by the bidder, the payment terms will be decided at the time of signing of agreement.

The Vendor's request(s) for payment shall be made to "The Nainital Bank Ltd." in writing (Invoice) accompanied by Service Level Requirements compliance reports for which payment is being claimed.

All the payments to the Vendor shall be subject to the report of satisfactory accomplishment of the concerned task,

Penalties, if any, on account of liquidated damages and non-compliance of Service Level Requirements, shall be deducted from the invoice value.

Payments will be released only on satisfactory acceptance of the deliverables for each

Task as per the particulars mentioned in the commercial bid format.

All Payments shall be made in Indian Rupees Only and shall be released by the Bank against the invoices raised by bidder within 30 calendar days given all the relevant documents are submitted timely and are complete in all reference.

Note:

- All payments will be made through electronic mode only.
- •Payments should be subject to deductions of any amount for which the Bidder is liable under the tender conditions. Further, all payments shall be made subject to deduction of TDS (Tax deduction at Source) as per the applicable Income-Tax Act.

4.4. Service Level Agreement & Targets

The selected vendor has to sign a detailed SLA before the issuance of Purchase Order. The SLA will be prepared jointly by the Bank & the selected vendor and will be based on

- •The scope of the RFP and any amendment done in the RFP before submission of the bid.
- •The solution offered by the vendor in response to the bid.
- •Selected vendor is obliged to provide additional infrastructure free of cost at any stage of the TCO period, if it was found that requirement & standards intended by the Bank in RFP is not being fulfilled.
- •The SLA will be binding on the vendor for the entire period of 5 Years i.e. the term of contract.
- •The Penalty clause shall be defined in SLA.

5. Section IV - Bid Submission Format

5.1. Bidder Profile

Sr	Particulars			Details	
1.	Name of the Bidder				
2.	Address of the Bidde	er			
3.	Status of the Cor Ltd)/Firm/LLP etc.	npany (Public	Ltd/ Pvt.		
4.	Details of Incorporat	ion of the Comp	any/Firm		
5.	Details of Commence	ement of Busines	SS		
6.	GST registration no.				
7.	a. Permanent Accour b. TAN	nt Number (PAN	J)&		
8.	Name & Designation of the authorized contact person to whom all references correspondence shall be made regarding this tender				
9.	Telephone No. (with a) Landline b) Mobile	STD Code)			
10.	E-Mail of the contact	person:			
11.	Fax No. (with STD C	ode)			
12.	Website				
13.	Financial Details (as	per audited Bala	nce Sheets)	(in Cr)	
14.	Year	2017-2018	2018	8-2019	2019-20
15.	Net Worth				
16.	Turn Over (Total)				
17.	Turn Over (from Indian Operations)				

18.	Turn Over (from data centre operations)		
19.	Profit After Tax (PAT)		
20.	Net Profit		

5.2. Manufacturer Authorization Format

Manufacturer's Authorization Form

To. The Chief Operating Officer Nainital Bank Limited Head Office Mallital, Nainital-263001 (Uttarakhand) Sir, for SUPPLY, INSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & SUPPORT FOR SOFTWARE SOLUTION FOR GOODS & SERVICES TAX (GST) We, (Name of the OEM) having our registered office at, are an established and reputable manufacturers developers of for above mentioned Request for Proposal. We confirm that we are participating in the RFP as a bidder. Our full support is extended to Bank in all aspects of supply, on-site warranty, maintenance and support for the supplied for the 5 year contract period (further extendable for 2 years) from date of issuance of supply / installation as per RFP terms. We also assure that our on-site service support would be available to Bank on 24x7 basis. declared End of Life during the 5 year contract period (further extendable for 2 years) . In case such a condition arises, we assure to replace such items with items of equivalent or better specifications without any financial implication to Bank. Yours faithfully, Authorized Signatory Name: Designation: Bidder's Corporate Name Address

Email and Phone #

5.3. Declaration for Non-Blacklisting

UNDERTAKING FOR NON-BLACKLISTED

To be provided on letter head of the Bidder's Company

Dated: Place:	
The Chief Operating Officer Jainital Bank Limited Jead Office Mallital, Naninital -263001 (Uttarakhand)	
ir,	
de:- Ref. No NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/008 dated for SUP NSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & SUPPORT FOR SOFTW OLUTION FOR GOODS & SERVICES TAX (GST)	
We M/s, a company incorporated under the companies act, 1956/with its headquarters at, do hereby confirm that have not been blacklisted/ debarred by the Statutory, Regulatory or Government Author or Public Sector Undertakings (PSUs / PSBs) or Private Banks or Financial Institutions in I during last 3 years.	it we rities
This declaration is been submitted and limited to, in response to the tender refermentioned in this document	ence
hanking You,	
ours faithfully,	
ignature of Authorized Signatory	
Name of Signatory:	
Designation:	
eal of Company	

5.4. Undertaking of Information Security

(This letter should be on the letterhead of the bidder duly signed by an authorized signatory on Information security as per regulatory requirement)

To,
The Chief Operating Officer
Nainital Bank Limited
Head Office
Mallital, Nainital-263001 (Uttarakhand)

Re:- Ref. No.- NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/008 dated for SUPPLY, INSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & SUPPORT FOR SOFTWARE SOLUTION FOR GOODS & SERVICES TAX (GST)

We hereby undertake that the proposed hardware / software to be supplied will be free of malware, free of any obvious bugs and free of any covert channels in the code (of the version of the application being delivered as well as any subsequent versions/modifications done)

Dated this	by	2021
------------	----	------

Yours faithfully,

Sir,

Authorized Signatory Name: Designation: Bidder's Corporate Name Address Email and Phone #

5.5. Undertaking by the bidder (To be included in Technical & Commercial Bid Envelope)

To be provided on letter head of the Bidder's Company

The Chief Operating Officer Nainital Bank Limited Head Office Mallital, Naninital -263001 (Uttarakhand)	Dated: Place:
Sir, Re:- Ref. No NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/008 dated INSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & S SOLUTION FOR GOODS & SERVICES TAX (GST)	
It is certified that the information furnished here in and a is true and accurate and nothing has been concealed or t through all the conditions of bid and are liable to any palse information / documents. Dated this day of	ampered with. We have gone punitive action for furnishing
Authorized Signatory Name: Designation:	

Bidder's Corporate Name

Email and Phone #

Address

5.6. Undertaking for Price Validity & Acceptance of all terms & conditions of RFP

To be provided on letter head of the Bidder's Company

Dated: Place:

The Chief Operating Officer
Nainital Bank Limited
Head Office
Mallital, Naninital -263001 (Uttarakhand)

Sir,

Re:- Ref. No.- NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/008 dated for SUPPLY, INSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & SUPPORT FOR SOFTWARE SOLUTION FOR GOODS & SERVICES TAX (GST)

We understand that Bank is not bound to accept the lowest or any bid received and Bank may reject all or any bid. We shall keep the price valid for the entire contract period from the date of issuance of the first Work order. If our bid is accepted, we are responsible for the due performance as per the scope of work and terms & conditions as per mentioned in RFP.

Yours faithfully,

Authorized Signatory Name: Designation: Bidder's Corporate Name Address Email and Phone #

5.7. Undertaking for No Deviation

To be provided on letter head of the Bidder's Company

Dated: Place:

The Chief Operating Officer Nainital Bank Limited Head Office Mallital, Naninital -263001 (Uttarakhand)

Sir,

Re:- Ref. No.- NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/008 dated for SUPPLY, INSTALLATION, CUSTOMIZATION, TRAINING & SUPPORT FOR SOFTWARE SOLUTION FOR GOODS & SERVICES TAX (GST)

Further to our proposal dated, in response to the Request for Proposal (Bank's RFP Ref. No <u>NTB/ACCOUNTS/GST/2021/04/008</u> hereinafter referred to as "RFP") issued by Bank, we hereby covenant, warrant and confirm as follows:

We hereby agree to comply with all the terms and conditions / stipulations as contained in the RFP and the related addendums and other documents including the changes made to the original tender documents if any, issued by the Bank. The Bank is not bound by any other extraneous matters or deviations, even if mentioned by us elsewhere either in our proposal or any subsequent deviations sought by us, whether orally or in writing, and the Bank's decision not to accept any such extraneous conditions and deviations will be final and binding on us.

Yours faithfully,

Authorized Signatory Name: Designation: Bidder's Corporate Name Address Email and Phone #

6) Section V: Scope of Work

6.1 Detailed Scope of Work:

The solution should be integrated with the CBS of bank i.e FINACLE 10.x (Developed by Infosys) with the help of base data extracted from CBS, the GST solution provider shall help bank in various GST compliances as mentioned hereunder.

The solution should provide the facility for collection of data available in the Transacting Systems (FINACLE 10.x). The solution should align/ integrate and migrate in its system, the data from the Bank's transacting systems both internal and external and change in the format required by the GSTN for various GST returns thereby processing GST Return filing of the Bank. This shall enable the Bank to be GST compliant for each of its GST registration and for the Bank as a whole.

The solution should possess the functionality to validate the base data from CBS viz the tax type, amount with the applicable tax rate as per the tax rate maintained for HSN/SAC Code. It is expected that ASP solution should have HSN/SAC Code and tax rate masters in built for necessary validations and bidder will carry out periodic up-dations in the rate masters in line with the notified tax rate, changes from time to time by the GST authorities, inform the bank accordingly.

The solution should be able to value the taxable supply and generate GST Invoices for the identified Inter-Branch transactions and maintain records/ledgers of such transactions GSTIN Registration wise.

The solution should be able to generate receipt voucher/payment voucher and issue of related debit note & Credit notes, supplementary invoice, cancelled Invoices, and such other documents under the GST regime along within the prescribed format with requisite details with necessary validations built in.

Provision should be there in the solution for linking of reversals (Credit Note) with original transaction/invoices with necessary check and system validations built in. The solution should provide the State wise segregation of the Data to enabling reporting under GST provisions.

The solution should able to map various sol - id's/Branch codes of the bank falling in a

particular state with the GSTIN's of the Bank of that particular state. A status report for each such registration in the Bank should be provided for monitoring its compliances. The solution should have the ability to segregate the transactions into different components of GST i.e. CGST, SGST, IGST and UGST.

The solution should be able to migrate, the data from the Transacting Systems(FINACLE 10.x) and change it in the format required by GSTN for various GSTR return and process for filing the return. Adequate Connector and transformation tool for integration (forward/ backward) with various systems like present version of Finacle 10.x, Payment System and other support systems must be available.

Though it is expected that the GST rate will be uniform across the country but the system should have the provision for different state/UT wise rates. There should be a provision in the solution to enter multiple rates for a GST registration based on the changes in state-wise rate changes, if any.

The solution should have the ability to provide the multiple, configurable options to determine GST location of service provider and place of supply.

There should be provision in the solution to alter GST related data post the transaction, if required, with proper audit trail. Whenever GST related data requires modification during return filing also, provision for alteration for re-filing for that particular transaction should be available in the system.

The solution should handle registration of all the states and CGST/SGST/IGST/UGST/Compensation (as applicable).

The solution should have the ability to upload and / or enter the GST No. of the customer and may segregate the transaction based on GST No. of the customer. The solution should have a provision to accommodate separate GST registration numbers for each state.

The solution should have the ability to determine the beneficiary GST based on GST No., customer address type, customer's home branch, transaction location and any other logic as suggested by the bank.

The solution should be able to import the invoicing data from bank's multiple internal

systems or should upload / data entry of invoice manually and importing the same from excel sheets or any other source and data format as and when specified by bank.

The solution should also facilitate manual Invoice generation from frontend.

The solution should have the ability to create the workflow for inquire, review, authorize, update data required under various GSTR returns etc.

The solution should have the ability to prepare the all GSTR forms for filling as per stipulated dates required under GST Law present and in future as well according to changes brought by GST Council / GST Authorities / CBIC / Any other regulatory body impacting GST aspect etc. It should enable interfaces to pay taxes and create challan's for the same.

The solution should prepare the various returns but not limited to like GSTR1, GSTR2, GSTR1A, GSTR6 and GSTR-9, etc. Auto generation and population of data required for Annual return, presently GSTR-9 / 9C is must requirement. Generation of GST Compliance reports for review before return filing with necessary validations. The same should have functionality and necessary interface built in to accept, reject, and keep pending bank's vendor / suppliers invoices on real time basis and any other return that may be required for input/output discrepancies. Any GST related return being introduced by GST Council / GST Authorities / CBIC / Any other regulatory needs to be prepared by the ASP solution provider at no additional cost.

The solution should have the ability to download and upload the GSTN data and convert it into the format as defined by GSTN / Bank. The solution should structure effective data monitoring tools.

The solution should have provision to validate GSTIN of the customers and throw failure records for re- correction and to upload again into the system. The solution is expected to have built in validation / business rules required accordance with GST law like but not limited to de-duplication check, PoS Validations, HSN etc.

The solution should provide the user with a dashboard for displaying the information such as return filing status of the Bank, vendor filing status, summary of all records updated or filed in a year or for any particular month. Activities like MIS,

reconciliation, compliance with respect to Statutory/ Government /GST guidelines, etc. should be made available on dashboard. These are indicative dashboard parameters only. Comprehensive dashboard will be developed by the bidder as per the bank's requirement at no additional cost. Consolidated view- multi month reconciliation through a single view of entire year's data. This shall enable integration to the State level Annual and periodic return under GST statutory filings.

The solution should have proper user management system with proper roles and privileges which can be configured. As mentioned solution should be web based with access to all branches of Nainital Bank ltd with necessary facilitation to download GST invoice as business requirement or on customer request. The solution should able to map branch / business centers with respective state GSTIN where they belong. There should be provision to the State controlling office / Head office for user management. User Management screen should have proper options available on a single screen itself to map the roles, groups, Branches etc. and having proper Maker – Checker concept as per Bank's policy.

The solution should have reconciliation module with banks data systems including with the Bank's financial books, with GST liable data pushed into the application for processing.

The solution should be able to integrate with LDAP, Human Resource Management system, Transacting Systems from user management point of view. The solution must be flexible to accommodate and manage various masters like HSN/SAC Code, Tax Rate, Branch master, State GSTIN Mapping to branch etc.

The solution should have the extensive and elaborative reconciliation modules. Proper MIS reports may be generated specifically showing the mismatch which has to be reconciled.

The solution should facilitate complete audit trail and single, elaborated, detailed view of purchase invoices which are accepted, rejected or kept pending. The solution should have functionality for bulk action of accept /reject or keep pending actionable at vendor / suppliers level.

The solution should have functionality to auto reconcile, the Auto-Drafted GSTR-2/2A

with the bank's Purchase Register. The solution should throw the un-reconciled report of mismatch entry between GSTR-2A and purchase register data (Invoices that figure in your purchase register but not uploaded by the supplier and Invoices that were uploaded by the supplier but do not figure in the purchase register). The solution should also provide the reason for mismatch in the report. Any additional customization required to enhance the reconciliation will be at no additional cost.

GSTR-2A data being dynamic in nature, the solution with capability to fetch / extract the incremental data during auto download process and make the same available for matching i.e., GSTR-2A data which was already downloaded during earlier process and matched should not be taken for processing. Further the solution must help in compliance of various guidelines pertaining to input restriction etc.

The solution to facilitate bulk download of past GSTR returns filed. Also to facilitate auto / submit data to GSTN Portal if opted by bank. MIS Reports Generation: Daily/Monthly/Yearly GST filing reports, Exception reports, Detailed/summary level reports, Audit Trail reports etc. The solution should have provision to have complete audit trail as per GST law at transaction level.

The solution should facilitate for purchase register, State-wise ledger view and tax credit utilization. The solution should be able to generate state wise output supply ledger, input credit ledger and other ledgers as required under GST law.

The solution's user interface will be customized as per bank's requirement keeping in view the branding of the bank at no additional cost.

There should be validations at each stage in conformity with the requirement of GSTN. There should be format provided in the solution for collecting the DATA of input tax credit from the branches and the same should be interfaced with the returns.

The solution should carry out all changes in functionality on account of changes due to new legislations/ statutes, Rules and notifications (Government Orders) and changes requested by the Department. It is expected that data treatment / actionable that can be done directly on GSTN portal in respect of any table should also be available in the solution with proper audit trail and logs.

The solution should take the available data from Transacting Systems and has to

ensure that all the requirement of CGST/SGST/IGST/UGST laws/rules/forms/return procedure are complied with in relation compiling and filing of various monthly/quarterly/annual returns enabling the Bank GST compliant.

The solution should be able to keep such data in the server and should be able to retrieve in the case of audit/inspection by the State/ Central authorities.

The solution should facilitate to identify, categorize and record inward supplies attracting RCM Liability.

The solution should facilitate to record provisional ITC availed against missing invoices, its respective reversal afterwards along with proper audit log. Facilitate to upload missing invoices to avail ITC on provisional basis. The solution is expected to identify the amount of provisional ITC available as per the provisions of GST law and flag the same in subsequent months to ensure that dual credit is not availed.

The solution should have functionality to check ITC eligibility throw suitable reports therefrom for control purpose and integrate with the Bank's internal systems for Input Services. Reports in respect of ITC eligible to be claimed in a particular month, year, selected period, ITC Under claimed and over claimed by Bank should be provided in bidder's solution.

The solution should provide for end to end solution including but not limited to:

- To collect the data from "Transacting System "with suitable interface or upload or any other means that may be decided with the selected bidders;
- for processing of such data collected from the Transacting Systems as per requirement of filing of various returns.
- Provide various MIS report that may be required from time to time for full compliance of GST, Audit and inspection by government department and monitoring of the compliances GST no wise, Unit-wise i.e. for each branch/office covered under the distinct GST no and also for Bank as a whole.
- All the cyber security features are to be incorporated in the solution.
- The solution should have the electronic records available at various levels viz.

branch, region, zone etc. in case of audit. The solution should be able to maintain the hierarchy of branches, regions, zones, bank etc.

- There should be proper provision to take the data from Transacting Systems and tallying with the return filed for Annual Return.
- The software should handle registration of 5 states and CGST /SGST /IGST / UGST at present and further change in states / UT's.
- Bidder will provide Application interface architecture for application
- Bidder will ensure Audit trails should be enabled for application server
- Bidder will ensure secure code review post major/critical changes to the Application /software
- Bidder will ensure escrow arrangement for application
- Bidder will ensure Personal Identifiable Information (PII) details such as PAN, Aadhar number should not be stored in clear text.
- Bidder will provide Source code audit certificate
- Bidder will ensure that Application level logs should be compatible for integration in Security Information and Event Management (SIEM) tool of the Bank for the proposed applications

Warranty, Annual Technical Support Services/ Annual Technical Maintenance Scope: Bidder shall factor the costs in the Price Schedule accordingly. As part of warranty, ATS & AMC services the bidder shall provide following services:

• Bidder shall provide the on-site comprehensive maintenance (Warranty, ATS and AMC) during the entire contract period for all the software and services including Third Party Software within the scope of work. The software items supplied should be with one year onsite comprehensive warranty, which will start from the date of acceptance of the software after being installed and tested. Subsequently the bidder shall provide onsite comprehensive ATS support for 4 years.

- Successful Bidder must provide uninterrupted availability of the system and ensure that the problem is resolved within the time schedule as mentioned in the Service Level Agreement.
- The warranty, ATS/AMC should be comprehensive in nature with service support through telephone and/ or email to the Bank. Bidder has to provide the escalation matrix further, if the problem still remains unresolved after telephonic help or in case of major breakdown, then Bidder has to arrange for on-site support for recovery and resolving the issue as soon as possible.
- Annual maintenance cost (AMC)/ Annual Technical Support (ATS) services include version upgradations, patches, bug fixing, and compliance of RBI/IBA/FIU-IND/any other regulatory authority changes, compliance of irregularities pointed by Internal/External Auditors etc.
- Back to Back OEM active support should be available for the software, third party applications etc supplied by the successful Bidder in the contract and supporting documents for the same should be provided for releasing of respective payments.
- The Bank will not be liable to pay any additional amount in respect of any sort of maintenance covered under the scope of this tender during the tenure of the contract. On-site maintenance services without any additional cost shall be provided by the Bidder during the period of warranty/ATS/AMC.
- Installation/re-installation, configuration/ reconfiguration of software including DB, as and when required during the contract period. All these activities are to be covered under scope of AMC/ATS provided by the vendor and bank will not pay any additional cost for the same.
- The services offered through Warranties, Annual Maintenance Contract and Annual Technical Support should meet the end-to-end onsite support requirements for implementing and maintaining infrastructure deployed as part of the proposal till completion of contract.
- Bidder shall provide New patches; Version releases/up-gradations will be released at periodical intervals, New Version will be provided in case of existing

Software is declared as End of Support / End of Sale / not able to comply the Regulatory guidelines, Bug fixing, etc as part of ATS.

- Bidder shall provide required help during IS Audit, Security Audit, various compliances specially government and regulatory, cyber related, etc to the Bank. Also rectify the irregularities pointed out during IS Audit at no cost to the Bank.
- MIS Reports generation: Bidder should provide Daily/Monthly/Quarterly/Yearly/adhoc reports, Exception reports, Detailed/summary level reports, etc. in the specified formats as required by the Bank
- The selected Bidder should agree to make a provision of making emergency release of patches in case of some serious bugs or immediate requirements without any additional cost to the Bank.
- The selected Bidder should agree to supply and install such periodical releases after removal of all bugs reported till that date and also the other modifications carried out based on feedback received till that date without any additional cost to the Bank.
- New Version with full customization should be provided in case of existing Software is declared as End of Support / End of Sale not able to comply the Regulatory guidelines during the contract period at no additional cost to the Bank.
- The selected Bidder should agree that during the warranty/ATS period, the software will be kept up-to-date in terms of followings, without any additional cost to The Bank: a) Bugs removal and troubleshooting. b) Maintenance and support for patches, version control and release. c) Regular performance tuning including database of solutions for performance optimization. d) Regular backup of GST application & database. e) Data rectification, if required, on being caused due to any program malfunction or due to any other reason whatsoever.
- The Bidder should agree that during the warranty/ATS period, they will provide the following operational support:
 - Training and hand-holding to core team.
 - Tuning and configuration of Hardware, software and database
 - Conducting regular server capacity analysis and advise remedial measures as required

- Conducting routine database assessments to ensure data quality and optimal data base performance e) Conducting periodic assessments of the GST software and/or its infrastructure to ensure that all the functional requirements are satisfied.
- Determining when the GST and/or its infrastructure need to be upgraded, replaced, or retired as per user/regulator's requirements.
- Installation, configuration of user specific various Master Tables.
- The selected Bidder is required to support/perform following user administration activities like creation of users, defining user authorization, granting of respective user rights and privileges.
- Migration of data from existing systems to new system, at the start of the project. Assisting users to carry out live run.
- Redress various operational problems.
- Carry out various housekeeping works and explain the same to users.
- The selected Bidder warrants that the services provided under the contract shall be as per the Service level Agreement (SLA) to be signed between the Bidder and the Bank.
- If the Bidder, having been notified, fails to remedy the defect(s) as per SLA, the Bank may proceed to take such remedial action as may be necessary at the Bidder's risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights, which the Bank may have against the Bidder under the contract.
- The selected Bidder should also guarantee that all the software supplied by the Bidder is licensed and legally obtained.
- Selected Bidder shall be fully responsible for any IP rights violation in connection to the supplied software. Only licensed copies of software shall be supplied and ported. The bidder shall grant an irrevocable perpetual license to the Bank to use the software. Further, all software supplied shall be of latest version.
- Assist/support the Bank to install the same, if Bank desires during period of warranty/ATS at no cost to the Bank. As per the Bank's Business Continuity Policy / Disaster Recovery Policy, bidder should design and update BCP/DRP document on periodic internals for the proposed solution.
- As a part of AMC/ATS support, Bidder is required to resolve the issues reported by the Bank (with the help of log generated by the application). Although the backup will be taken by our DC team, the Bidder will also be responsible to test the backup for the restorability of using test server once in every 6 months
- Bidder has to take up the complete installation, integration and customization of the proposed GST solution with the existing CBS system (Finacle 10.X) and other

applications without disturbing the day to day operations of the bank. Bidder should accomplish the job in co-ordination with existing CBS system & other applications OEMs. The proposed GST solution shall meet the scope of work and also the functional and technical scope of work requirements as mentioned in the RFP.

 The Bidder should propose a detailed hardware sizing requirement including database and any other software to the bank and the bank shall provide the same

6.2Timeline For Go-Live

Bank is expecting to Go-Live with the proposed GST solution within 16 weeks from the date of issuing Letter of Intent/ purchase order to the selected vendor.

6.3Software Functionality

All the functionality in Scope of Work and Software functionality should be provided as end-to-end solution by the Bidder.

A = Functionality is AVAILABLE - (1) Mark

C = CUSTOMIZABLE free of cost - (0.5) Marks

All the points marked Customizable –C should be made available for SIT within -12-weeks from the issuance of Letter of Intent/Purchase order.

S.no	Requirement	Response (A /
		C)
1	The solution should be integrated with the CBS of bank i.e	
	FINACLE 10.x (Developed by Infosys) with the help of base data	
	extracted from CBS, the GST solution provider shall help bank in	
	various GST compliances as mentioned hereunder.	
2	The solution should provide the facility for collection of data	
	available in the Transacting Systems (FINACLE 10.x). The solution	
	should align/ integrate and migrate in its system, the data from the	
	Bank's transacting systems both internal and external and change in	
	the format required by the GSTN for various GST returns thereby	
	processing GST Return filing of the Bank. This shall enable the Bank	
	to be GST compliant for each of its GST registration and for the Bank	
	as a whole.	

3	The solution should possess the functionality to validate the base	
	data from CBS viz the tax type, amount with the applicable tax rate	
	as per the tax rate maintained for HSN/ SAC Code. It is expected	
	that ASP solution should have HSN/SAC Code and tax rate masters	
	in built for necessary validations and bidder will carry out periodic	
	up-dation in the rate masters in line with the notified tax rate,	
	changes from time to time by the GST authorities, inform the bank	
	accordingly.	
4	The solution should be able to value the taxable supply and generate	
	GST Invoices for the identified Inter-Branch transactions and	
	maintain records/ledgers of such transactions GSTIN Registration	
	wise.	
5	The solution should be able to generate receipt voucher/payment	
	voucher and issue of related debit note & Credit notes,	
	supplementary invoice, cancelled Invoices, and such other	
	documents under the GST regime along within the prescribed	
	format with requisite details with necessary validations built in.	
6	Provision should be there in the solution for linking of reversals	
	(Credit Note) with original transaction/invoices with necessary	
	check and system validations built in. The solution should provide	
	the State wise segregation of the Data to enabling reporting under	
	GST provisions.	
7	The solution should able to map various sol - id's/Branch codes of	
	the bank falling in a particular state with the GSTIN's of the Bank of	
	that particular state. A status report for each such registration in the	
	Bank should be provided for monitoring its compliances. The	
	solution should have the ability to segregate the transactions into	
	different components of GST i.e. CGST, SGST, IGST and UGST.	
8	The solution should be able to migrate, the data from the	
	Transacting Systems (FINACLE 10.x) and change it in the format	
	required by GSTN for various GSTR return and process for filing the	
	return. Adequate Connector and transformation tool for integration	
	(forward/ backward) with various systems like present version of	
	Finacle 10.x , Payment System and other support systems must be	
	available.	
	1	

9	Though it is expected that the GST rate will be uniform across the	
	country but the system should have the provision for different	
	state/UT wise rates. There should be a provision in the solution to	
	enter multiple rates for a GST registration based on the changes in	
	state-wise rate changes, if any.	
10	The solution should have the ability to provide the multiple,	
	configurable options to determine GST location of service provider	
	and place of supply.	
11	There should be provision in the solution to alter GST related data	
	post the transaction, if required, with proper audit trail. Whenever	
	GST related data requires modification during return filing also,	
	provision for alteration for re-filing for that particular transaction	
	should be available in the system.	
12	The solution should handle registration of all the states and	
	CGST/SGST/IGST/UGST/Compensation (as applicable).	
13	The solution should have the ability to upload and / or enter the	
	GST No. of the customer and may segregate the transaction based	
	on GST No. of the customer. The solution should have a provision to	
	accommodate separate GST registration numbers for each state.	
14	The solution should have the ability to determine the beneficiary	
	GST based on GST No., customer address type, customer's home	
	branch, transaction location and any other logic as suggested by the	
	bank.	
15	The solution should be able to import the invoicing data from bank's	
	multiple internal systems or should upload / data entry of invoice	
	manually and importing the same from excel sheets or any other	
	source and data format as and when specified by bank. The solution	
	should also facilitate manual Invoice generation from frontend	
16	The solution should have the ability to create the workflow for	
	inquire, review, authorize, update data required under various	
	GSTR returns etc.	
17	The solution should have the ability to prepare the all GSTR forms	
	for filling as per stipulated dates required under GST Law present	
	and in future as well according to changes brought by GST Council	
	/ GST Authorities / CBIC / Any other regulatory body impacting	
	GST aspect etc. It should enable interfaces to pay taxes and create	
	challan's for the same.	

18	The solution should prepare the various returns but not limited to like GSTR1, GSTR2, GSTR1A, GSTR6 and GSTR-9, etc. Auto generation and population of data required for Annual return, presently GSTR-9 / 9C is must requirement. Generation of GST Compliance reports for review before return filing with necessary validations. The same should have functionality and necessary interface built in to accept, reject, and keep pending bank's vendor / suppliers invoices on real time basis and any other return that may be required for input/output discrepancies. Any GST related return	
	being introduced by GST Council / GST Authorities / CBIC / Any	
	other regulatory needs to be prepared by the ASP solution provider at no additional cost.	
19	The solution should have the ability to download and upload the GSTN data and convert it into the format as defined by GSTN / Bank. The solution should structure effective data monitoring tools.	
20	The solution should have provision to validate GSTIN of the customers and throw failure records for re- correction and to upload again into the system. The solution is expected to have built in validation / business rules required accordance with GST law like but not limited to de-duplication check, PoS Validations, HSN etc.	
21	The solution should provide the user with a dashboard for displaying the information such as return filing status of the Bank, vendor filing status, summary of all records updated or filed in a year or for any particular month. Activities like MIS, reconciliation, compliance with respect to Statutory/ Government /GST guidelines, etc. should be made available on dashboard. These are indicative dashboard parameters only. Comprehensive dashboard will be developed by the bidder as per the bank's requirement at no additional cost. Consolidated view- multi month reconciliation through a single view of entire year's data. This shall enable integration to the State level Annual and periodic return under GST statutory filings.	

22	The solution should have proper user management system with	
	proper roles and privileges which can be configured. As mentioned	
	solution should be web based with access to all branches of Nainital	
	Bank ltd with necessary facilitation to download GST invoice as	
	business requirement or on customer request. The solution should	
	able to map branch / business centers with respective state GSTIN	
	where they belong. There should be provision to the State	
	controlling office / Head office for user management.	
23	User Management screen should have proper options available on a	
	single screen itself to map the roles, groups, Branches etc. and	
	having proper Maker - Checker concept as per Bank's policy.	
24	The solution should have reconciliation module with banks data	
	systems including with the Bank's financial books, with GST liable	
	data pushed into the application for processing.	
25	The solution should be able to integrate with LDAP, Human	
	Resource Management system, Transacting Systems from user	
	management point of view. The solution must be flexible to	
	accommodate and manage various masters like HSN/SAC Code,	
	Tax Rate, Branch master, State GSTIN Mapping to branch etc.	
26	The solution should have the extensive and elaborative	
	reconciliation modules. Proper MIS reports may be generated	
	specifically showing the mismatch which has to be reconciled.	
27	The solution should facilitate complete audit trail and single,	
	elaborated, detailed view of purchase invoices which are accepted,	
	rejected or kept pending. The solution should have functionality for	
	bulk action of accept / reject or keep pending actionable at vendor /	
	suppliers level.	

28	The solution should have functionality to auto reconcile, the Auto-	
	Drafted GSTR-2/2A with the bank's Purchase Register. The solution should throw the un-reconciled report of mismatch entry between	
	GSTR-2A and purchase register data (Invoices that figure in your	
	purchase register but not uploaded by the supplier and Invoices that	
	were uploaded by the supplier but do not figure in the purchase	
	register). The solution should also provide the reason for mismatch	
	in the report. Any additional customization required to enhance the	
	reconciliation will be at no additional cost.	
	GSTR-2A data being dynamic in nature, the solution with capability	
	to fetch / extract the incremental data during auto download	
	process and make the same available for matching i.e., GSTR-2A	
	data which was already downloaded during earlier process and	
	matched should not be taken for processing.	
	Further the solution must help in compliance of various guidelines	
	pertaining to input restriction etc.	
29	The solution to facilitate bulk download of past GSTR returns filed.	
2)	Also to facilitate auto / submit data to GSTN Portal if opted by	
	bank. MIS Reports Generation: Daily/Monthly/Yearly GST filing	
	reports, Exception reports, Detailed/summary level reports, Audit	
	Trail reports etc. The solution should have provision to have	
	complete audit trail as per GST law at transaction level.	
30	The solution should facilitate for purchase register, State-wise ledger	
	view and tax credit utilization. The solution should be able to	
	generate state wise output supply ledger, input credit ledger and	
	other ledgers as required under GST law.	
31	The solution's user interface will be customized as per bank's	
	requirement keeping in view the branding of the bank at no	
	additional cost.	
32	There should be validations at each stage in conformity with the	
	requirement of GSTN. There should be format provided in the	
	solution for collecting the DATA of input tax credit from the	
	branches and the same should be interfaced with the returns.	
33	The solution should carry out all changes in functionality on account	
	of changes due to new legislations/ statutes, Rules and notifications	
	(Government Orders) and changes requested by the Department. It	
	is expected that data treatment / actionable that can be done directly	
	on GSTN portal in respect of any table should also be available in	
	•	

	the solution with proper audit trail and logs.	
34	The solution should take the available data from Transacting Systems and has to ensure that all the requirement of CGST/SGST/IGST/UGST laws/rules/forms/return procedure are complied with in relation compiling and filing of various monthly/quarterly/annual returns enabling the Bank GST compliant.	
35	The solution should be able to keep such data in the server and should be able to retrieve in the case of audit/inspection by the State/ Central authorities.	
36	The solution should facilitate to identify, categorize and record inward supplies attracting RCM Liability.	
37	The solution should facilitate to record provisional ITC availed against missing invoices, its respective reversal afterwards along with proper audit log. Facilitate to upload missing invoices to avail ITC on provisional basis. The solution is expected to identify the amount of provisional ITC available as per the provisions of GST law and flag the same in subsequent months to ensure that dual credit is not availed.	
38	The solution should have functionality to check ITC eligibility throw suitable reports therefrom for control purpose and integrate with the Bank's internal systems for Input Services. Reports in respect of ITC eligible to be claimed in a particular month, year, selected period, ITC Under claimed and over claimed by Bank should be provided in bidder's solution.	
39	The solution should have the electronic records available at various levels viz. branch, region, zone etc. in case of audit. The solution should be able to maintain the hierarchy of branches, regions, zones, bank etc.	
40	There should be proper provision to take the data from Transacting Systems and tallying with the return filed for Annual Return.	
41	The System should be able to track, monitor and report unsuccessful attempts at log-in and provide these details to the admin.	
42	The System must have the graphical dashboard	

43	System should support all standard OS and databases (like Oracle, MySQL, MS-SQL etc.)	
44	Change in parameters and conditions should be supported through front-end (no back-end dependency)	
45	All the patches/fixes, version upgrades of all the software components released by the OEM during the contract period should be provided. The Vendor should ensure implementation of all the patches/ fixes and version upgrades in the production environment to the latest version during the contract period	
46	The System should support encryption and digital signature feature.	
47	The System must have the capability of batch/file uploads of the data from external data source	
48	The solution should have ability to generate various MIS reports as per regulators / statutory requirements. The bidder must arrange for necessary customizations wherever required during the contract period at no additional cost. (e.g. date range, user activity, status for which data has to be extracted)	
49	The System should have the capability to view / export / print files and reports in standard formats such as csv, xls, XML, PDF etc. with requisite security measures	
50	There should be a comprehensive audit trail detailing every user activity.	
51	Audit Logs should be generated in multiple formats - pdf, rtf, xls etc.	
52	The system should have complete audit trail of the alerts generated.	
53	Audit trail of rule-changes to be maintained and system / product limitations of user rules, if any, to be mentioned as a footnote.	
54	Complete and comprehensive security from unauthorized access and misuse should be available along with necessary audit trail detailing every user's activity.	
55	System must have a Login ID and password for each user for logging into the system.	
56	Passwords must be kept encrypted in the database and should not be visible using any source.	
57	The number of levels / rights assigned to each level should be user configured by the bank	

	Option to grant modular access to the different menu options and		
58	fields to the different users should be configurable by the		
	administrator		
59	System should provide Maker/Checker facility for critical modules		
60	Access to the system for all the users should be available only		
60	through menu selection of the user interface.		

6.4Hardware Specifications

The Bidder has to submit the hardware specification document covering exhaustive list of all hardware items, software items (like OS, DB etc.) with their configurations to the Bank for implementing the proposed solution in accordance with the requirements of the proposed solution. The sizing should be done keeping in mind the fact that the application will be used by the Bank for a period of -5- year (extendable further for 2 years at Bank's discretion). The Bank reserves the right to procure the same from the bidder or from open market. However, the shortlisted bidder will assist Bank in below tasks related to hardware:

- Install the proposed solution on the hardware infra as recommended by the Bidder.
- Recommend any enhancements/upgrades to the hardware and the software installed on same, to ensure that the application functions as required.
- Support Bank in replacing/upgrading any software like OS, DB etc. that goes end of life/end of support to ensure that the proposed application functions as required
- Support Bank team to ensure maintenance activities that are carried out as and when required.
- Assist Bank team in ensuring compliance to various guidelines issued by RBI, other regulatory bodies, government etc.

Tentative no of Transactions is as specified below:

Sr.	Transaction Information	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
1	Average No of Transactions per day from Branch Network	150000	180000	232000	292000	335000
2	Average No of Transactions per day from Channels and interfaces	100000	126000	158000	195000	223000

7. Section VI: Financial Bid Format

Sr. No.	Particulars	Total Amount	
1.a	One time Application Software/license cost – Perpetual		
1.b	Third-Party Application Cost (if any)		
2	Implementation Cost & Integration Cost (One Time Cost)		
3	Other Cost (If any, please specify)		
4	Annual AMC/ATS Charges on per annum basis		
	GRAND TOTAL OF PROPOSED SOLUTION in INR (Excluding GST/Other taxes)		

(Signature of Authorized Signatory)
(Name, Designation and Address)
(Seal of the Company)

----End of Document----

Date: